
 
page 1 of 6 

  
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SAFETY MINUTES  
SEPTEMBER 26, 2006 

 
 
Subject to approval at the October 3, 2006, Board of Works meeting 
 
 
The Board of Public Works and Safety of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana met in 
regular session in the Board of Works Room at City Hall on September 26, 2006, at 
11:00 a.m.  Present were Janet L. Broyles and Gilbert T. Satterly who presided.   
Mayor Mills was absent. 
 
SRF Disbursement Request No. 77: Wessler & Associates – Engineering Services 
for Western Interceptor – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said I request the Mayor to approve an SRF for 
Wessler & Associates. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the SRF Disbursement Request No. 77 for 
SRF Loan Number CS1807501, in the amount of $75,485 for Wessler & Associates 
for engineer services for digester renovation.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, 
and the vote was AYE. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said I would note that it’s interesting that it’s been in the news 
lately about plans to produce biogas that they’re proposing in Indiana.  It would be 
similar technology to what we’ve already started with to maximize the methane 
production from this and do the cogeneration, so we’re leading the way already. 
 
Bid Announcement:  Two 2007 Pickup Trucks – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said I also have specifications for two trucks to be 
purchased out of Wastewater funds.  I would ask the Clerk-Treasurer to select 
advertising dates, I believe it would be October 6 and 13, with bid opening on the 
17th, if the Board approves the specifications to be advertised.   
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the specifications for 2007 truck bids for two 
pickups for publishing and bid opening dates.  Publishing is October 6 and 13, and 
the bid opening is the 17th.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was 
AYE. 
 
[The bid opening must be October 24, in compliance with State statutes, and was so 
advertised.] 
 
Information for Board:  Sewer Breaks on Quincey and Salisbury - Sanitation 
Public Works Director Downey said just for the Board’s general information, this is 
two holes on Quincey Street that I have not received estimates on repair of those two 
breaks on Quincey Street, starting about at Salisbury and going down over the hill, 
and then there’s one just down over the hill from Littleton.  They’re major breaks on 
about a 30-inch line, and I will get those.  I bring those to your attention, but I also 
have a break on Salisbury Street, a lateral that comes from a house on the east side 

Internet
Text Box
Approved at the October 3, 2006, Board of Works meeting.



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 26, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 2 of 6 

of Salisbury, just north of the entrance of Happy Hollow School.  I do have an 
estimate on that of $9,781 by Fairfield to repair, and I will go ahead and give him that 
job to go ahead and repair, since Fairfield is on the street and they do have traffic 
control on that street.  We will have to shut down the southbound lane when that 
happens, and we haven’t made final arrangements of when to do that.  They are 
switching over from the east side of Salisbury to the west side of Salisbury shortly, so 
I may wait a little bit longer.  But this lateral is critical for that homeowner. 
 
Mr. Satterly said does the City pay for repairs to laterals, or does the homeowner 
have to pay for that? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said when they’re in the right-of-way, it’s our 
responsibility.  That was a change in the ordinance five years ago or six years ago, 
somewhere in that neighborhood. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said that’s something that we certainly want to get done before 
we do that resurfacing. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said correct. 
 
Information for Board:  Sewer Breaks on Huron - Sanitation 
Public Works Director Downey said I have two breaks on Huron.   
 
Mr. Satterly said this information is all a result of your televising? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said yes.  I have two spots on Huron, two root balls.  
We have, to date, spent $3,000 with Fluid Waste.  That’s a 24-inch line.  I don’t have 
a root cutter big enough for a 24-inch line.  We thought we could save money and 
excavation by cutting them out, but even Fluid Waste out of Indianapolis could not cut 
these roots out.  We did get them opened up enough to get flow going at a 
reasonable pace.  I have a proposal from A & K for $15,980.  They will dig those two 
spots up, cut the top of the pipe out, remove the roots, etc., and then patch it and put 
the street back together.  They are ready to go on that job, and the sooner I can get 
those roots out, the better off I believe the City will be. 
 
Ms. Broyles said do we need a motion? 
 
Mr. Satterly said do we need to approve this proposal or—? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said I don’t believe you need to approve any of them. I 
bring them to your attention just to let you know that I’m probably about $45,000 to 
$50,000, by the time it’s said and done on those five repairs. 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 26, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 3 of 6 

 
Mr. Satterly said this comes out of the Wastewater Utility? 
 
Public Works Director Downey said yes, general operations.  And there is money in 
that for rehab and reconstruction and repairs, and I just bring that to your attention. 
 
Acceptance of Maintenance Bonds:  Sanitary Sewers – Huntington Farms, Phase III, 
Section II – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said as a follow-up from last week, there was a little 
miscommunication on accepting some sewers in Huntington Farms Subdivision, 
Phase III, Section II.  We thought we were talking about Lauren Lakes, but we’re 
actually correct in saying Huntington Farms.  That section and phase is ready for 
acceptance.  We’ve passed all testing and have the maintenance bond secured for 
that section, so we recommend the Board formally accept that section. 
 
Mr. Satterly said where is Huntington Farms Subdivision? 
 
City Engineer Buck said it’s west on Lindberg Road, on the south side, after you get 
past Klondike Road. 
 
Mr. Satterly said okay, so it’s out near Green Meadows? 
 
City Engineer Buck said it’s in Green Meadows. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the sanitary sewers, as-built drawings, and 
three-year maintenance bonds for the Huntington Farms, Phase III, Section II 
sanitary sewer line.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Information for Board: Salisbury Street Construction and Traffic – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said I can follow up with Dave’s [Public Works Director Downey’s] 
Salisbury Street sewer break location. We will be switching traffic tomorrow, actually, 
on Salisbury Street, from the east side, being the work zone, to the west side 
becoming the work zone.  And now the traffic will be cordoned off in a similar fashion, 
but they’ll be using the other half of the street, and so the switchover work for that will 
begin tomorrow, and then we’ll start putting in those little cones and delineate the 
work zone. 
 
Mr. Satterly said how are they going to handle the right turn onto Grant? 
 
City Engineer Buck said it’s going to be a straight and right only, until they get enough 
room to widen out.  They will be widening right there— 
 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 26, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 4 of 6 

Mr. Satterly said okay, so they’ll just have to move way out to make the right turn onto 
Grant? 
 
City Engineer Buck said yes.  That section at the Grant Street intersection is not 
going to have the little tubes actually affixed to the pavement.  They’ll just do it with 
barrels, so they have some flexibility.  That’s a very  tight location, and because the 
turn lanes and all the turning movements and the fact that it’s pretty narrow through 
there gives them a little bit of flexibility to be customized with the amount of work zone 
that they can create and still let traffic flow as good as we can.  They’ve been real 
good working with that intersection with us up to this point, so we hope that now, that 
we’ve got part of the street done, it’ll get better, but that has been a— 
 
Mr. Satterly said it’s kind of narrow in there for traffic going north and traffic going 
south, to stay out of the right turn lane. 
 
City Engineer Buck said yes.  There were a couple periods of time where we actually 
have already limited it, to not have a right-only lane, but just to have the single 
southbound lane for both straight and right.  And that’s not caused too much backup. 
 We may have to go back to that at certain points in time, when they’re working in that 
immediate vicinity, either installing the new work or tearing it out here in the next 
week or two.   
 
Mr. Satterly said you don’t change the signal indications? 
 
City Engineer Buck said they are to the point where the signal work is going to be 
going on.  The signal work should start in about two to three weeks.  They’ll be doing 
some work tomorrow, for the underground conduits and things of that nature. 
 
[overtalking]  
 
City Engineer Buck said we already have. 
 
Mr. Satterly said so you’ve taken out the right-turn arrow? 
 
City Engineer Buck said yes.  We already have. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said and make it function with the green light. 
 
Mr. Satterly said with the green through. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said yes. 
 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 26, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 5 of 6 

Mr. Satterly said because otherwise, traffic would be sitting there with the red and 
people would get the green arrow and they’ll want to go right— 
 
City Engineer Buck said they’ve already coordinated those two, and then has flipped 
it back and forth, based on what the contractor is doing on a daily basis.  And they 
keep in contact, as needed when they go to a setup that would require that.   
 
City Attorney Bauman said if you have a chance, you might go out today.  It’s starting 
to look pretty good.  They’re finishing putting the topsoil and the sod in. 
 
City Engineer Buck said there will be a gap of sidewalk, unfortunately, at the Grant 
Street intersection, because the signal work hasn’t gotten to a point where it can 
continue.  It’s about anywhere from 80 feet to 100 feet, and they are going to prep it 
with stone, and it will be passable, but it won’t be new concrete finish, so we’ll have 
signs up and it will be open, but it will be a rough surface.  It’ll just be stone rather 
than concrete, and then when they get the signal poles in the proper location and the 
signal work to a point where they can install a new sidewalk, they’ll come back and do 
that one segment.  It shouldn’t take them more than a day at that point.   
 
Agreement:  H. Stewart Kline & Associates, Inc. – Design Services for Salisbury 
Street Safety Improvements Project, Phase II – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said the next item I have is for Phase II of the Salisbury Street 
Safety Improvements, from Riley Lane up to Rainbow, which is just south of Navajo. I 
have a design services agreement with Steward Kline & Associates that I’d like to 
request the Board to approve.  We learned a lot on the first phase, and this should, 
hopefully, be all that we would need to do, as far as design services go.  It’s a total 
design fee of $76,850. 
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the Salisbury Street Safety Improvements 
Phase II design project with Stewart Kline & Associates, and it’s in the amount of 
$76,850.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
City Engineer Buck said the scope of this project will be virtually identical to what 
we’re working on on Phase I.  It’ll just extend the project up through the Lindberg 
Road intersection with Salisbury Street and on to the north.  The hills, the retaining 
walls get a lot less complicated up there, and hopefully, it will be a smoother go of it. 
 
Agreement: Geo Solutions Consulting, Inc. – Topographic Survey for Salisbury Street 
Safety Improvements Project, Phase II – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said we would also like the Board to request a survey proposal 
with Geo Solutions Consulting to gather topographic survey information for this same 



 
 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 26, 2006, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 6 of 6 

phase of Salisbury Street Safety Improvements, Phase II.  That survey proposal is in 
the amount of $8, 250.  
 
Ms. Broyles said I move that we approve the proposal for Geo Solutions Consulting, 
Inc. for Phase II of the Salisbury Street construction, and it’s in the amount of $8,250. 
 Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Information for Board and Public: Traffic Switchover on Salisbury - Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said I just would like to remind folks of the traffic maintenance 
switchover on Salisbury Street, and to be aware of that as they travel. 
 
City Attorney Bauman said and please slow down a little. 
 
City Engineer Buck said yes. 
 
Claims 
Mr. Satterly moved to approve the claims as submitted in two dockets in the following 
amounts: 

     Accounts Payable $130,438.64
     Accounts Payable $30,585.65

Motion was seconded by Ms. Broyles, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Minutes 
Ms. Broyles said I move we approve the minutes of the September 19, 2006, Board 
of Works meeting.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business at this time, Ms. Broyles moved for adjournment.  
Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
Jan H. Mills, Mayor                    Judith C. Rhodes, Clerk-Treasurer 
Presiding Officer                                  Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 




